
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
TUESDAY  9:00 A.M. SEPTEMBER 20, 2011 
 
PRESENT: 

John Breternitz, Chairman 
Kitty Jung, Commissioner 

David Humke, Commissioner 
 

Amy Harvey, County Clerk 
Katy Simon, County Manager 

Paul Lipparelli, Assistant District Attorney 
 
ABSENT: 

Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 
Bob Larkin, Commissioner 

 
 The Washoe County Board of Commissioners convened at 9:02 a.m. in 
regular session in the Commission Chambers of the Washoe County Administration 
Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada. Following the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the flag of our Country, the Clerk called the roll and the Board conducted the following 
business: 
 
11-835 AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
  There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
11-836 AGENDA ITEM 4 – ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Manager’s Announcements, Requests for 
Information, Topics for Future Agendas, Statements Relating to Items Not on the 
Agenda and any ideas and suggestions for greater efficiency, cost effectiveness and 
innovation in County government. (No discussion among Commissioners will take 
place on this item.)” 
 
 Katy Simon, County Manager, announced Agenda Item 6, the meeting of 
the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Board of Fire Commissioners, was being 
pulled. 
 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2011  PAGE 1   



 Chairman Breternitz asked for a moment of reflection for the ten known 
fatalities that occurred Friday at the Reno Air Races, for those who were injured, and for 
those who witnessed the tragedy.  
 
 Chairman Breternitz read a Resolution Supporting Victims and Their 
Families and Commending Staff and Volunteers for Efforts During the Air Race 
Emergency. The Resolution for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes 
thereof. He led a round of applause for the first responders who were present. He 
announced there would be a memorial service at Idlewild Park on Sunday at 6:00 p.m., 
which everyone was invited to attend.  
 
 Commissioner Humke requested an agenda item to discuss Animal 
Services, because the County was rife with rumors regarding what was occurring with 
Animal Services and certain leases. He indicated the discussion should take place only if 
all five Commissioners were present. 
 
 Chairman Breternitz stated he met with the Dick Bernard, the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA) Board Chairman. He said he was told 
REMSA would provide all of the information required to conduct a comprehensive 
analysis of the countywide emergency medical system. He advised if there were any 
questions regarding the appropriateness of the information being requested, he would 
meet with Mr. Bernard to get the issue resolved. Katy Simon, County Manager, advised 
awarding the contract to a firm to conduct the study was on next week’s agenda. 
 
 Chairman Breternitz requested an agenda item regarding SB 381, which 
allowed the wedding chapels to issue marriage licenses when the Clerk’s Office was 
closed. He stated he wanted an update on whether it would be necessary to implement 
that provision of SB 381. 
 
11-837 AGENDA ITEM 5 – REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 
 
Agenda Subject: “Vote Canvass - September 13, 2011 Special Election--Registrar of 
Voters.  (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Dan Burk, Registrar of Voters, stated the 32.73 percent voter turnout in 
Washoe County for the Special Election was higher than expected. He said 54 percent of 
the voters took advantage of early voting and 39 percent voted on Election Day. He noted 
more people voted during the first week of early voting than during the second week for 
the first time. He said just under 5,000 people voted using absentee ballots and there were 
340 requests for absentee ballots from the military and overseas voters with slightly more 
than 300 voting. He explained that was the only category where people could vote 
electronically through a process set up under the federal government. He said the ballot 
was scanned and sent to the voter, they voted, scanned the ballot, and returned it to the 
Registrar’s Office. He stated ballots were then duplicated and entered into Washoe 
County’s electronic system, which meant the voters had to sign away their right to 

PAGE 2  SEPTEMBER 20, 2011  



privacy regarding their vote. He stated that service was especially helpful for military 
personnel who might otherwise not have the time to vote.  
 
 Mr. Burk said all 500 of the poll workers showed up, which was the first 
time he could recall that happening, and all 69 polling places were open on time. He 
stated he was grateful for the 39 employees who volunteered and to the Department 
Heads who allowed them to work during the election. He explained they were especially 
adept at handing situations with people because they were used to dealing with the 
public.  
 
 Mr. Burk said out of the 14 early voting locations, the highest percentage 
of early voting occurred at the Scolari’s stores. He stated another surprising fact from this 
election was the high number of provisional votes cast. He said 394 were counted as 
being eligible to vote in the election out of the 464 ballots cast. He explained many 
people showed up at the wrong polling place because the number of poling places was 
decreased for this election.  
 
 Mr. Burk said the Certification Board was required to choose 2 percent out 
of the 1003 total edges to audit, and they chose 20 locations and 20 edges. He noted they 
checked the electronic ballots against the paper ballots and they matched.  
 
 Mr. Burk said the map attached to the staff report showed the County’s 
rate of turnout and where each candidate did well. He said the Abstract was shown in 
pages 7 through 25 and was broken down by how the people voted.  
 
 Mr. Burk thanked his wonderful staff, Cate Salim, Heather Carmen, 
Deanna Spikula, and Luanne Cutler; the 39 county employees who volunteered including 
Brian Takemoto and Kobe Harkins from the Technology Services Department. He also 
thanked Bob Harmon, Regional Parks and Open Space Public Information Officer, and 
Lorrie Adams, Community Outreach Coordinator, for their support in representing the 
County to the press on Election Day. He said he additionally wanted to thank Marilyn 
Kramer and the people in Reprographics who produced over 220,000 copies of the 
sample ballot for under $5,000.  
 
 Commissioner Humke asked how close to a polling place could campaign 
or candidate activity occur. Mr. Burk confirmed it was 100 feet from the entrance to the 
building. He explained the federal courts decided four years ago that exit polling could be 
done right up to the door. 
 
 Commissioner Humke asked who could use electronic voting. Mr. Burk 
said the federal law applied to all military personnel and their spouses, including those 
overseas, and any other overseas voters. He explained the federal government developed 
its own electronic voting system, but it was clunky to use. He said that led to Washoe and 
Clark Counties developing their own in-house system, which provided greater flexibility 
while still allowing the voter’s identity to be verified. Commissioner Humke asked if the 
development of the electronic voting system related to the United States Postal Service 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2011  PAGE 3   



(USPS) financial situation. Mr. Burk said the system had nothing to do with the USPS 
situation. He stated military personnel had been complaining that once they got their 
ballot there was not enough time to return it, especially if they were posted to a remote 
location. 
 
 Commissioner Humke said he was intrigued by how quickly Mark 
Amodei was called Representative Elect for Nevada's 2nd U.S. House District seat. Mr. 
Burk explained the election results would remain unofficial until the Commission 
certified the election results; and he was also surprised Mr. Amodei was sworn in already, 
because the last day to certify the vote was tomorrow. He said the process was to count 
all of the votes, verify the provisional ballots, and then present the canvass to the 
Commission for approval. Commissioner Humke said if a flaw in the canvass was found, 
any votes Mr. Amodei cast in Congress could be unwound. Mr. Burk advised a person 
still had the right to file a challenge of the election through today. He said ordering a 
recount was always a possibility and happened in Washoe County before.  
 
 Commissioner Humke said the Legislature passed the special election 
process, and he asked if Mr. Burk had any recommendations to improve the process. Mr. 
Burk said some of the features of a bill that passed took care of some of the worst 
problems, such as the last day to register to vote being after the first day of early voting. 
He felt it was a shame the money had to be spent to conduct the special election, because 
eight months later it would have to be done again. He stated the advantage for his office 
in doing the special election was a small election was the best type of election to prepare 
for the large elections that would occur in 2012.  
 
 Commissioner Humke said he had been informed the special election 
legislation was passed after September 11, 2001 due to concerns of possible mass 
casualties in the United States Congress. He asked if multiple vacancies could have been 
handled using an appointment system. Mr. Burk said the United States Constitution 
proved a replacement to the Unites States Congress would be made by the people, 
because it was called the “people’s house.”  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Humke, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioners Larkin and Weber absent, it was ordered 
that the vote canvass submitted under Agenda Item 5 be approved and declared as 
official. The Abstract of Votes Cast in the Special Election of September 13, 2011 is 
attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof.  
 
11-838 AGENDA ITEM 7 – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor 
negotiations with Washoe County, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and/or 
Sierra Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220.” 
 
 There was no closed session. 
 

PAGE 4  SEPTEMBER 20, 2011  



SEPTEMBER 20, 2011  PAGE 5   

11-839 AGENDA ITEM 9 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment.  Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 

 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 

 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

9:35  a.m. There being no further business to discuss, on motion by Chairman 
Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner Jung, which motion duly carried with 
Commissioners Larkin and Weber absent, the meeting was adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      JOHN BRETERNITZ, Chairman 
      Washoe County Commission 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
AMY HARVEY, County Clerk and 
Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners 
 

Minutes Prepared by:  
Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  
















































	11-835 AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT
	11-836 AGENDA ITEM 4 – ANNOUNCEMENTS
	11-837 AGENDA ITEM 5 – REGISTRAR OF VOTERS
	11-838 AGENDA ITEM 7 – CLOSED SESSION
	11-839 AGENDA ITEM 9 – PUBLIC COMMENTS

